
 

WORK SESSION 

October 14, 2024 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Lorenzo Heard. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Invocation. 

4. Minutes. 

a. Minutes of the September 23rd Regular Meeting and September 30th Work Session. 

5. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Student Minister Aaron Muhammad of Muhammad Mosque No. 100 is present to 
receive a proclamation recognizing the Mosque’s efforts for serving the people of 
Albany and Southwest GA.                        

b. Chief Jailer John Ostrander is present to update the Commission on the accreditation 
that the Sheriff’s Office attained  through the Office of Sheriff Accreditation Program 
(OSAP) of the Georgia Sheriff’s Association (GSA).  

6. Zoning. 

a. Lanier Engineering, Inc., applicant and Billy Bogus Construction, LLC, owner  
(24-062) request to rezone a 1.012-acre parcel from R-1 (Single-Family Residential 
District) to C-R (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling District). The rezoning 
would align with adjacent parcels and allow a single-family residential development. 
The property location is 1729 Beattie Road.  The Planning Commission recommends 
approval.  Angel Gray, Deputy Planning Director will address.  The Public Hearing and 
Action on this item are scheduled for the October 21, 2024 Regular Meeting. 

1



7. Purchases. 

a. Recommendation to accept the quote for recording equipment for Juvenile Court from 
BIS Digital (Ft. Lauderdale, Fl) in the amount of $27,500.  Juvenile Court recently 
obtained new computers, and the recording system needs to be upgraded to be 
compatible with the equipment.  Funding is budgeted in the General Fund.  Assistant 
County Administrator Barry Brooks and Juvenile Court Clerk Tequila Woods will 
address. 

b. Recommendation to purchase two Caterpillar M318 Hydraulic Excavators from 
Yancey Bros. Co. (Albany, GA) in the amount of $735,486.  The dealer will provide a 
trade in allowance of $209,000 for the existing equipment.  The final expenditure will 
be $526,486.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator 
Barry Brooks will address.  Public Works Director Chuck Mathis is present. 

c. Recommendation to accept the funding allocation request and bid for the FY 22/23 
Road Resurfacing Project from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Reeves 
Construction Company Inc. (Albany, GA) in the amount of $6,620,255.  Two bids were 
received.  Funding, if approved, will be provided by unappropriated/unused funds in 
SPLOST III, IV, V, VI, VII; 2022 and 2023 LMIG; T-SPLOST-2 Roadway Improvement; 
T-SPLOST-2 Roadway Striping.  Assistant County Administrator Barry Brooks and 
Public Works Director Chuck Mathis will address.  City of Albany Buyer Ricky Gladney 
is present. 

8. Additional Business. 

a. Recommendation from the Library to apply for three Georgia Public Library Service 
Major Repair and Renovation Grants in the amount of $900,000 for renovations of the 
Westtown Library.  The grant includes a $450,000 local match.  Funding is available 
in SPLOST VI and VII.  Assistant County Administrator Barry Brooks and Library 
Director Gail Evans will address.   

b. Recommendation to accept the Albany/Dougherty Resiliency Plan.  The City of Albany 
adopted the proposed plan in their September 24, 2024 Meeting.  Disaster Recovery 
and Grants Program Manager Harriet Hollis and Chandler Duncan, Managing Partner, 
MetroAnalytics will address. 

9. Updates from the County Administrator. 

a. Update on the HMGP 4284-0057 Sirens Project. 

10. Updates from the County Attorney. 

11. Updates from the County Commission. 

12. Adjourn. 

  

2



 Dougherty County's Vision Statement 

Dougherty County will be a committed leader in sustaining a high quality of life by 
partnering with citizens, businesses, and other government agencies to make this a 
community of choice for living, working, and leisure activities. 

Dougherty County's Mission Statement 

To improve the quality of life for all our citizens by being accessible and good stewards of 
our resources while delivering cost-effective, responsive, services with integrity, fairness, 
and friendliness. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 
are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 promptly to allow the County to make 
reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

September 23, 2024    DRAFT 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on September 23, 2024.  Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines,  

Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were Assistant 

County Administrator Barry Brooks, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk  

Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public participated in person and via live streaming of the 

meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.   

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by the Chairman, he called for approval of the 

minutes for the August 19th Regular Meeting, August 19th Tax Public Hearing, August 26th Work 

Session, August 26th Special Called Meeting, and August 29th Special Called Meeting. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

minutes were unanimously approved.   

 

The Chairman opened the zoning public hearing of Fred Orton, applicant and owner (24-038) 

request to rezone a 44.57-acre parcel from R-2 (Single-Family Residential District) and AG 

(Agricultural District) to AG (Agricultural District). The rezoning would allow for the portion of 

property zoned R-2 to align with Agricultural uses. The property is at 2615 Liberty Expressway 

SE.  The Planning Commission recommended approval.  Tanner Anderson, Planner I, addressed.  

There being no individuals present in support of or opposition to the proposed tax public hearing, 

the Chairman closed the public hearing. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the ratification for the emergency repair to Fleming Road 

in the amount of $196,225 to Reeves Construction Company (Albany, Ga).  The Commission 

provided consensus to the repair in the July 29, 2024 Work Session. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation for the Dougherty County 

Commission to allow the County Administrator, as well as his/her designee, to have the authority 

to approve or deny requests for transfers of alcohol licenses in the unincorporated area in lieu of 

having action by the Board of Commissioners.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring the listed equipment and vehicles 

as surplus and authorize the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction. 

4

Item 4a.



Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Mr. Brooks and Mrs. Ware addressed the questions of Commissioner Gaines.  

There being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed unanimously.   

Resolution 24-037 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION ENTITLED A RESOLUTION 

DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE ATTACHED LIST OF 

EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR 

DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME VIA AN ONLINE 

AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and execution 

of the Financial Advisory Services Agreement from Davenport Public Finance in an amount not 

to exceed $10,000. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 24-038 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION ENTITLED A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR 

THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF THE FINANCIAL 

ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT FROM DAVENPORT 

PUBLIC FINANCE; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for the zoning consideration of Fred Orton, applicant and owner (24-038) 

request to rezone a 44.57-acre parcel from R-2 (Single-Family Residential District) and  

AG (Agricultural District) to AG (Agricultural District). The rezoning would allow for the portion 

of property zoned R-2 to align with Agricultural uses. The property is at 2615 Liberty Expressway 

SE.  The Planning Commission recommended approval. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to accept the resolution declaring a 2021 Ford Explorer 

Police Interceptor (from the Dougherty County Police) as surplus and authorize the sale through 

Charles Taylor TPA.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 24-039 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION ENTITLED A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS 

SURPLUS A SALVAGED 2021 FORD EXPLORER POLICE 

INTERCEPTOR (VIN NO. 1FM5K8AW4MNA08589) AND 

HAVE SAID SURPLUSED SALVAGED VEHICLE DISPOSED 

5

Item 4a.



OF THROUGH CHARLES TAYLOR TPA, DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY’S THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATOR; REPEALING 

RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

Mr. Brooks thanked the Board for their support during his time on the dais and provided an update 

on the pending storms.  Commissioner Edwards provided kudos to Mr. Brooks for the work he 

had done and Commissioner Johnson echoed the same sentiments to Mr. Brooks.  In addition, 

Commissioner Johnson shared his appreciation to Mr. Brooks for the productive retreat.  

Commissioners Gray, Gaines, Jones and Chairman Heard added to the previous comments to 

include gratitude to staff.  Commissioner Gaines asked for an update from the Elections Supervisor 

Ginger Nickerson at the next meeting pertaining to the new regulations passed.  Commissioner 

Jones and Chairman Heard closed with the new slogan “Moving the County Forward.” 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

10:20 a.m. 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

6

Item 4a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

September 30, 2024 DRAFT 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on September 30, 2024.  Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were Assistant County 

Administrator Barry Brooks, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, Deputy County Clerk  

Bristeria Clark and other staff. The public and media participated in person and via live 

streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access 

channel.  County Clerk Jawahn Ware participated via Facebook. 

 

Chairman Heard introduced provided an overview of the new County Administrator Deron King. 

 

After the invocation by Chairman Heard, he asked the Commission to review the minutes of the 

September 9th Regular Meeting, September 16th Work Session, September 16th Special Called 

Meeting, and September 2024 Mid-year Commission Retreat. 

 

The Chairman recognized Fredando “Farmer Fredo” Jackson to update the Commission on the 

Flint River Fresh project.  Mr. Jackson provided an overview and shared that the focus was on 

economic fresh food.  He distributed about 20,000 pounds of fresh fruit and introduced a 

program named “Fresh RX” where 15-20 people were chosen every six months to learn effective 

nutrition ways.  Information about the screening and fresh produce provided at the health fair 

events was shared.  Commissioner Jones provided kudos to Farmer Fredo on his work with 

agriculture and other Commissioners shared similar sentiments. 

 

The Chairman recognized President and CEO of the Economic Development Commission  

Jana Dyke who asked if she could use the Candy Room as a storage place for items to help 

individuals who had been impacted by Hurricane Helene.  She added that the items collected 

will be distributed to the Ashburn and Fitzgerald communities. The Board provided consent. 

 

The Chairman recognized citizens Agnes Barthel and Victor Meadows to share their concerns 

about the perception of votes not being counted.  Ms. Barthel said that she spoke with Voter 

Registration and Elections Supervisor Ginger Nickerson who informed her of a systematic glitch 

on the vendor's end and her concern was to ensure that other citizen's votes counted as well.  

Chairman Heard asked that Mrs. Nickerson be present for a follow-up discussion at the next 

Work Session.  Commissioner Johnson asked Chairman Heard to request that the Voter 

Registration Board representative also be present next week. 

 

The Chairman called for a recommendation to purchase an industrial washer and dryer from 

Sourcewell Contract vendor Stafford Smith, Inc. in the amount of $34,464.18 for the Jail.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI.  Assistant County Administrator Barry Brooks addressed. 

Chief Jailer John Ostrander was present.  Chief Ostrander shared that one of the items was not 

7

Item 4a.



repairable.   

 

The Chairman called for a recommendation to accept the quotes to replace Air Handler #1A and 

#1B (AHU) and upgrade the controls in the Albany/Dougherty County Government Center.  

Service Pros (Leesburg, GA) quoted $87,972.80 for the AHU replacements and sole source 

vendor, ESS (Albany, GA) quoted $127,140 for the control upgrade for a total expenditure of 

$215,112.80.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI and VII.  Assistant County Administrator  

Barry Brooks addressed.  Facilities Management Director Heidi Hailey was present.  Ms. Hailey 

shared that there were two air handler areas in the Government Building and since COVID, this 

equipment has to now be built. 

 

Attorney Shalishali welcomed the new County Administrator.  Commissioners Newsome, 

Edwards, Gaines, and Jones shared the same sentiments.  Commissioner Edwards wanted to know 

what was available in the different SPLOST accounts.  Commissioner Johnson asked for prayers 

for the individuals who suffered from Hurricane Helene.  Commissioner Gaines asked the County 

Attorney for an update on completing the review of the ordinance.  Attorney Shalishali shared 

that the Board could provide a priority list as to what code they would like to set first.  Chairman 

Heard asked for a moment of silence for the lives that were lost during the storm and for Captain  

Ted Thomas who passed last night from the Dougherty County Sheriff’s Office.  Commissioner 

Gaines recognized Former Willie Mayor Adams who was present in the meeting.  

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:58 a.m. 
 

 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 

ATTEST: 
 

 
 

COUNTY CLERK 

 

8

Item 4a.



 
 

 
             MEMORANDUM 

  Date:       October 4, 2024 
 

To:          Dougherty County Board of Commissioners 

From:       Albany-Dougherty Planning Commission 

Subject:    24-062 - Rezoning - 1729 Beattie Rd 
  
Lanier Engineering, INC (24-062) has submitted an application to the Albany Dougherty 
Planning Commission requesting that the Official Zoning Map of Dougherty County, 
Georgia, be amended to rezone a 1.012-acre parcel from R-1 (Single-Family Residential 
District) to C-R (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling District). The rezoning would 
align with adjacent parcels and allow a single-family residential development. The 
property is 1729 Beattie Rd (00302/00001/03B). The property owner is Billy Boggus 
Construction LLC, and the applicant is Lanier Engineering, INC. District 1  
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Art Brown offered a motion to approve as recommended by staff;  
Charles Ochie seconded the motion.  
 
The motion carried 7-0 with the following votes: 
 
Sanford Hillsman         Tie or Quorum 

Aaron Johnson                Yes 

William Geer                    Yes 

Jimmy Hall                    Yes 

Demetrius Love          Yes 

Art Brown                   Yes 

Charles Ochie                  Yes 

Willie Simmons                Yes 

 

 

                                             P L A N N I N G & D E V E L O P M E N T S E R V I C E S 
 

               P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

9

Item 6a.

http://www.albanyga.gov/


STAFF ANALYSIS AND REPORT 
APPLICATION #24-062 REZONING 

 

 
 
 

OWNER: Billy Boggus Construction, LLC 
 
APPLICANT: Lanier Engineering 
 
LOCATION:     1729 Beattie Road   
      Tax Parcel 00302/00001/03B 
 
CURRENT ZONING/USE:   

Zoning: R-1 (Single Family Residential District) 
Use:     1.012-Acre Vacant Parcel  

PROPOSED ZONING/USE:   
Zoning: C-R (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling 

District) 
Use: Detached Single-Family Homes 

ZONING/ADJACENT LAND USE:  
North: Zoning: R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) 
Land Use: Religious Institution 

 
South: Zoning: C-Rc (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling 

District with Conditions) 

10

Item 6a.



   Land Use:    Vacant Parcel  
 

West: Zoning: C-Rc (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling 
District with Conditions)                                                               

Land Use:                                  Vacant Parcel 
 

East: Zoning:  C-R (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling 
District) 

Land Use:                                 Apartment Complex   
                                                           
 
MEETING INFORMATION:   

Planning Commission: 10/3/2024, 2:00 P.M., Government Center, 
                                                222 Pine Avenue, Rm. 100 
Public Hearing: 10/21/2024, 10:00 A.M., Government Center, 
                                                222 Pine Avenue, Rm. 100 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval  
 
 
BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Lanier Engineering has submitted an application to the Albany-Dougherty Planning 
Commission requesting to amend the Official Zoning Map of Dougherty County, 
Georgia, to rezone a 1.012-acre parcel from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to 
C-R (Community Residential Multiple-Dwelling District). The rezoning would allow for 
conformance with the adjacent parcel (1731 Beattie Rd) and the development of a 
single-family development.   
 
 
PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
The site is a 1.012-acre vacant parcel on Beattie Rd, not within the 100-year floodplain.  
 
RELEVANT ZONING HISTORY 
 
The parcel has maintained its original zoning district of R-1 (Single-Family Residential 
District) since Dougherty County adopted zoning in 1969.  
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Listed below are several issues for consideration in evaluating this rezoning application. 
 

11

Item 6a.



1. Will the rezoning proposal permit suitable use for the use and development of 
adjacent and nearby property? 
Yes. Rezoning to C-R will allow the property to be used to develop a single-family 
community. This rezoning will also allow for zoning conformance with the adjacent 
parcel.  
 

2.  Will the rezoning proposal adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent 
or nearby property?  
No, the rezoning is not believed to affect the existing use of adjacent properties 
adversely.  

 
3.  Does the property affected by the rezoning proposal have reasonable economic use 

as currently zoned? 
No. This parcel is vacant and can only support one single-family structure as 
currently zoned. Rezoning to C-R will allow for a higher density of residential use in 
combination with the adjacent parcel.  
 

4.  Will the rezoning proposal result in a use that will or could cause excessive or 
burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools? 

 
• Impact on Utilities: The proposed use will not impact utilities.  
• Impact on the School System: The proposed use will not impact the school 

system. 
• Impact on Transportation Network: Staff estimates that the effect of the 

rezoning on the surrounding transportation network would be minimal and as 
follows:  

 
Trip Generation: According to Trip Generation's 11th Edition, a single-family detached 
housing unit would generate between 4 and 22 daily trips. 
 
AADT: The closest Average Daily Traffic (AADT) is on Beattie Rd., with an AADT of 
5,270 in 2023.  
 
Road Improvements: According to the FY 2024-2027 Transportation 
Improvement Program and the Dougherty Area Regional Transportation 
Study 2045, the area has no state or federally-funded projects. 
 
Road Classifications: Streets that provide access to the subject property are 
classified accordingly:  
 

• Beattie Road is classified as a Major Collector (Urban) Street. 
 
Public Transit Routes: The Albany Transit System does not serve this location. 

12

Item 6a.



 
Accident Information: The Planning Staff has run accident reports to provide data 
for the immediate area, between Gillionville Rd and Beattie Rd, to Dean’s Dr. Reports 
indicate that 17 accidents have been reported over the past year. Four injuries were 
reported, and none of the accidents were fatal. 
 
Proposed Driveway/Parking Plan: The applicant proposes constructing a smaller 
lot, single-family development. Access will be from Beattie Rd. Two parking spaces are 
required per dwelling unit, but a parking plan will not be required.  
 
Analysis: Staff finds there should be minimal additional impact on the surrounding 
transportation network anticipated due to the proposed use.  
 
5.   Does the rezoning proposal conform to the policy and intent of the Albany-

Dougherty Comprehensive Plan for Development (2026)?  
 
No. The Albany-Dougherty Comprehensive Plan recommends public/institutional use. 
However, the rezoning to C-R will allow for conformity amongst the adjacent 
parcels.   
 

6.  Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development 
of the property that provide grounds for approving or disapproving the rezoning 
proposal as submitted? 
 
The lot sizes within this development must follow the guidelines outlined in Table 
II.2.02 Minimum Lot Area and Yard Requirements.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval to rezone this 1.012-acre vacant parcel to C-R to match the 
zoning of the adjacent parcel and for the development of a single-family community.  

13

Item 6a.



14

Item 6a.



15

Item 6a.



16

Item 6a.



17

Item 6a.



18

Item 6a.



19

Item 6a.



20

Item 6a.



21

Item 6a.



22

Item 6a.



23

Item 6a.



24

Item 6a.



25

Item 6a.



26

Item 6a.



27

Item 6a.



28

Item 6a.



29

Item 6a.



30

Item 6a.



31

Item 6a.



32

Item 6a.



 

                 Barry Brooks 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 
 

Date:    October 9, 2024 
  
Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 
 
Subject/Title:  Juvenile Court Recording Equipment Upgrade 
 
Presented for:  Decision 
 
Presenter:   Barry Brooks, Assistant County Administrator 
 
Statement of Issue: 
 
The Dougherty County Juvenile Court recently obtained new computers and now needs to 
upgrade the recording system in the courtroom to adapt to the new equipment. 
 

History/Facts and Issues: 
 

The Dougherty County Juvenile Court recently obtained new computers and now needs to 
update the existing recording equipment to be compatible with the new computers. A quote 
was obtained from BIS Digital (Ft Lauderdale, FL) in the amount of $27,500 to update the 
existing recording system. 
  
Recommended Action: 
 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission approves the purchase and installation of the 
new equipment to upgrade the recording system in the Dougherty County Juvenile 
Courtroom in the amount of $27,500.  
 
Funding Source: 
 
1002600.542500 
Other Equipment  

33

Item 7a.



 

                  

 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

       

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 
 

Date:   September 30, 2024 
 

Meeting Date:              October 7, 2024 
 

Subject/Title: Purchase - Two Caterpillar Model M318 Hydraulic Excavators  

 Yancey Cat Quotes - 261379-02 A & B. 
 

Presented for:  Decision 
 

Presenter:                     Barry Brooks, Assistant Administrator 
 

Statement of Issue 

The Public Works Department is requesting approval to purchase two Caterpillar M318 Hydraulic 

Excavators. 
 

History/Facts and Issues  

The Dougherty County Public Works Department is requesting approval to purchase two Caterpillar 

Model M318 Hydraulic Excavators from Yancey Bros. Co. (Albany, GA) in the amount of $367,743 

each.  Quote A, provides a trade allowance of $50,750 for the 2014 John Deere Model 190D, and 

final cost will be $316,993, for use by the Road Maintenance Division. The trade allowance on Quote 

B, is $158,250 for the 2018 Caterpillar, Model M322, and the final cost is $209,493 for use by the 

Drainage Division. The Excavators are necessary for major construction projects, mining, and heavy-

duty lifting operations, which will replace the aging models we currently have.  
 

Recommended Action 

The recommendation is that the Dougherty County Commission approves the expenditure in the 

amount of $316,993 for the Hydraulic Excavator for Road Maintenance Division and $209,493 for 

the Drainage Division. The expenditure includes the purchase of two Hydraulic Excavators in the 

amount of $526,486 from Yancey Bros Co., (Albany, GA). 
 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VII ROAD EQUIPMENT – 367,743.00 – 50,750.00 = 316,993.00  

SPLOST VII STORM DRAINAGE – 367,743.00 – 158,250.00 = 209,493.00  

34

Item 7b.



              Barry Brooks 
                              Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

 

                                                        

 DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                                ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 Agenda Item 
   

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

 

Date:   October 4, 2024 
 

Meeting Date:             October 14, 2024 
 

Subject/Title:  FY 22/23 Road Resurfacing Project 
 

Presented for:  Discussion / Approval 
 

Presenter:                   Barry Brooks, Asst. County Admin. / Chuck Mathis DCPW Director 

 

Statement of Issue 

The Public Works Department is requesting the Board of Commissioners approve the FY 22/23 

Roads Resurfacing project bid and funding sources.  

 

History/Facts and Issues  

The Dougherty County Public Works Department is requesting approval to use 
unappropriated/unused funds from SPLOST accounts to fund the final bid amount of $6,620,255 
for the FY 22/23 Roads Resurfacing project from the most responsive and responsible bidder 
Reeves Construction Company (Albany, GA).  The project will allow for 45 miles of roads to be 
resurfaced. 
 
The project was properly and legally advertised, and two qualified bids were received from  
Reeves Construction Company in the amount of $7,848,475 and Oxford Construction Company 
in the amount of $7,879,180.75. Both amounts were over budget primarily because the price of 
asphalt was under $100 per ton when quoted over two years ago for project planning.  Due to 
inflation, there have been price increases, and the cost of asphalt is an average of $124 per ton.  
This project will consist of approximately 52,000 tons and due to long sections of road, there will 
be additional costs associated with traffic control required. To get the project closer to the allotted 
budget, the asphalt spread rate was reduced by ¼”; which is still within GDOT standards.  
 

Recommended Action 

Recommend that Dougherty County Board of Commissioners approves the bid amount and 

funding sources for the lowest responsive bidder Reeves Construction Company (Albany, GA) 

in the amount $6,620,255.00 for the FY 22/23 Resurfacing Projects 

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST III, IV, V, VI, VII; 2022 and 2023 LMIG; T-SPLOST-2 Roadway Improvement;  

T-SPLOST-2 Roadway Striping 

35

Item 7c.



36

Item 7c.



37

Item 7c.



DDOCO LMIG RESURFACING 
2022 & 2023 

RESURFACING  (170 #/SY) 

Name  Width   Length Asphaltic Concrete 

HOLLIS DRIVE – Holly Dr to Hibiscus Rd 18 3,852 655 

HONEYSUCKLE DRIVE – Radium Springs Rd to US 19 20 4,195 792 

HONEYSUCKLE DRIVE – US 19 to Moultrie Rd 24 16,101   3,650 

GIBSON ROAD – Gravel Hill Rd to Moultrie Rd 24 7,495 1,699 

PECAN LANE – Fleming Rd to Moultrie Rd 24 3,644 826 

WOODRIDGE COURT– Pinson Rd to Cul-de-sac 20  1,920 363 

PINE BLUFF ROAD – Sylvester Rd to Clark Ave 22 2,753 572 

PINE BLUFF ROAD – Clark Ave to Cordele Rd 22 4,415 917 

HILL ROAD – Clark Ave to N. County Line Rd 24 12,600  2,856 

LEGGETT DRIVE – Vanderbilt Dr to Coakley Ave 24 1,820 413 

FLOWING WELL ROAD – Eight Mile Rd to Gillionville Rd 24 16,115 3,653 

WALKER DUCKER ROAD – Flowing Well Rd to Dead End 24 775   176 

WILDFAIR ROAD – Hardup Rd to Newton Rd 21 18,010 3,572 

OAKHAVEN DRIVE – Newton Rd to Cul-de-sac 24  5,280 1,197 

RIVER POINTE DRIVE – Philema Rd to Grand Cypress Lane 27 7205 1,837 

RIVIERA LANE – Oak Hill Lane to Dead End 27 570 145 

SLADE AVENUE – Vanderbilt Dr to Dead End 24 6,155  1,395 

COAKLEY AVENUE – Leggett Dr to Dead End 24 3,410 773 

S. COUNTY LINE ROAD – Fleming Rd to Hwy 133 24 28,275 6,409 

S. COUNTY LINE ROAD – Hwy 133 to Mitchell Co. Line 21 5,950   1,180 

CUTTS DRIVE – Mock Rd to Louise St 36 2,170 738 

TALLAHASSEE ROAD – Gillionville Rd to Terrell Co. Line 20  16,720 3,158 

DOCO LMIG Resurfacing 2022 & 2023 
Bid Ref. #25-005

10
38

Item 7c.



HOLLY DRIVE – Radium Springs Rd to US 19 21 6,025 1,195 

HOLLY DRIVE – US 19 to Hwy 133 (Section 1) 24 2,850 646 

HOLLY DRIVE – US 19 to Hwy 133 (Section 2) 36 2,160 734 

TARVA ROAD – Leary Hwy to Baker Co. Line 21 27,065  5,368 

RADIUM SPRINGS ROAD – City Limits to Barbragale Ave 26 10,875 2,670 

RADIUM SPRINGS ROAD – Nelms Rd to Mitchell Co. Line 20 8,220   1,553 

RADIUM SPRINGS ROAD – Westview Dr to Nelms Rd 24 4,175   946 

NEWCOMB ROAD – Roxanna Rd to Drainage Canal 24 2,065 468 

SOUTHGATE AVENUE – MLK Jr. to Dead End (Section 1) 27  700 179 

SOUTHGATE AVENUE – MLK Jr. to Dead End (Section 2) 34  1,150 369 

PHOEBE ROAD – Radium Springs Rd to Stage Coach Rd 24  1,450 329 

THOMPSON DRIVE – Honeysuckle Dr to SE Rosewood Dr 22  1,200 250 

MUD CREEK ROAD– OVERLAY SECTION 21 500 99 

EIGHT MILE ROAD – OVERLAY SECTION 24 100 23 

Total       237,965 LF 
Total     45.07   MI 
Total      51,805   TN 

RRUMBLE STRIP LOCATIONS 

HONEYSUCKLE DRIVE (West Side) at US 19 1 EA 

HONEYSUCKLE DRIVE (East Side) at US 19 1 EA 

HILL ROAD at Clark Ave 1 EA 

HILL ROAD at N. County Line Rd 1 EA 

TARVA ROAD at Leary Highway 1 EA 

HARDUP ROAD at Wildfair Rd 1 EA 

DOCO LMIG Resurfacing 2022 & 2023 
Bid Ref. #25-005

11
39

Item 7c.



40

Item 8a.



41

Item 8a.



42

Item 8a.



Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman 

Ed Newsome, District 1 

Victor Edwards, District 2 

Clinton Johnson, District 3 

Russell Gray, District 4 

Gloria Gaines, Vice Chairman, District 5 

Anthony Jones, District 6 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

       Deron King, County Administrator 

       Alex M. Shalishali, County Attorney 

 

   

 

 

222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

HMGP 4284-0057 Sirens Project 

Sirens for Cities Amendment Request #2 for Scope of Work Change & 

Budget Line-Item Addition  
 

 

 

October 9, 2024 

 

Dougherty County Board of Commissioners 

Deron King, County Administrator 

dking@dougherty.ga.us 

 

Dear Mr. King, 

 

An amendment is needed for the HMGP 4284-0057 Sirens Project.  The amendment request is due 

to the need for a new Whalen Encoder Sirens System.  The contractor that installed the new sirens 

has informed Dougherty County and the Albany Fire Department that the current Whalen Encoder 

Sirens System is outdated and that it is just a matter of time before the system fails and will not 

work. The purchase and installation/set-up of the new Whalen Encoder Sirens System will require a 

scope of work change and budget line-item amendment to be approved and submitted to the Georgia 

Emergency Management Agency (GEMA) HMGP Division. 

 

The cost of the new Whalen Encoder Sirens System has been quoted by three vendors and three 

quotes have been reviewed by the County Engineer, the management staff at the Albany Fire 

Department, and me. Based on our evaluation, if approved by you and the Commission, the County 

would move forward with submitting the request to GEMA and accepting the quote from Mobile 

Communications in the amount of $3,605.00. This cost will not impact the overall Sirens Project 

Budget but will require a new line item to be added to the budget. 

 

43

Item 9a.



Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman

Ed Newsome, District 1

Victor Edwards, District 2

Clinton Johnson, District 3

Russell Gray, District 4

Gloria Gaines, Vice Chairman, District 5

Anthony Jones, District 6

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

                          ADMINISTRATION

       Deron King, County Administrator

       Alex M. Shalishali, County Attorney

222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us

This correspondence is to request approval to move forward with submitting a formal scope of work 

change letter to GEMA for the purchase and installation/set-up of a new Whalen Encoder Sirens 

System. Support documentation for the requested amendment #2 scope of work change is attached 

to this correspondence.   

Please review and approve the requested budget amendment #2 scope of work change for the  

purchase and installation/set-up of a new Whalen Encoder Sirens System, and a budget amendment 

to add the new cost line item in the overall budget. 

Best Regards,

Georgia Collier-Bolling

Program Manager

229.499.4024 

gbollling@dougherty.ga.us 

Enclosure:  

Amy Westenfeld

Jeremy Brown

Cedric Scott

Latonza Mosley

Barry Brooks 

Kim Woods 

Georgia Collier-Bolling

Program Manager

44

Item 9a.


	Top
	Item 4a.	Minutes
	2024.09.23 Minutes Regular
	2024.09.30 Minutes Work

	Item 6a.	Zoning a_Lanier Engineer
	Zoning a_Recap
	Zoning a_Staff Report

	Item 7a.	Purchase a_Recording Equipment
	Purchase a_Recording Equipment

	Item 7b.	Purchase b_Excavators
	Purchase a_Excavators

	Item 7c.	Purchase c_LMIG
	Purchase c_Resurfacing Supplemental Write Up
	Purchase c_Resurfacing Write Up
	Purchase c_Resurfacing Road List

	Item 8a.	Other a_Library Grant
	Other a_MMR Grants (3)

	Item 9a.	Update 1_Sirens
	Update 1

	Bottom

